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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

          3  Comrie is on his way. We have Oliver Koppell here,

          4  and we've got me, so we'll get started now, because

          5  the important part is not what I say, it's what you

          6  folks have to say, so they'll be there for that.

          7                 Thanks, everyone, for coming. My name

          8  is Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of this

          9  Committee, and today we're going to have a hearing.

         10  I want to welcome you all to this hearing on the

         11  City's Right-to-Know Law. We're fortunate to have in

         12  our audience someone who is a staff member to

         13  Comptroller Jay Golden back in 1998. Nancy Anderson,

         14  who played a large role in drafting this bill and

         15  putting it forward, and thanks, Nancy, for being

         16  here today, and following up on this issue all these

         17  years.

         18                 And I was going to make a little

         19  quick mention that this was the first hearing of the

         20  Committee, since we have the new Commissioner who

         21  wasn't able to be with us today, but I did have a

         22  very pleasant conversation with him. We look forward

         23  to a long and prosperous, I guess I will use that

         24  word, relationship with him and all the good people

         25  at the EP. Please give him my best regards, and
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          2  regards to the members here on the Committee.

          3                 And, so, on to the subject of the

          4  day. We're going to have an oversight hearing on the

          5  Right-to-Know Law, and we're going to be hearing

          6  Intro. 47, which is a local law that speaks to this

          7  issue, and we're all very much aware of the danger

          8  proposed by hazardous substances, and we certainly

          9  have to do all we can to ensure that our citizens

         10  and the people who respond to tragic emergencies are

         11  protected from those that would improperly store or

         12  dispose of these substances. That's what the crux of

         13  the Right-to-Know Law is all about.

         14                 We all know that even small amounts

         15  of these materials can cause very terrible results.

         16  Of course, it comes to mind, a City worker,

         17  Sanitation worker Michael Hanly, who died several

         18  years back through some acid of some kind,

         19  hydrofluoric acid, I believe, in the back of a

         20  hopper of a Sanitation truck, and was tragically

         21  killed.

         22                 And that's just a small amount, so we

         23  can all imagine the tragedy that could result from

         24  the dumping of much larger quantities of these

         25  substances and to our densely populated environment,
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          2  or the terrible fate of firefighters or other people

          3  who enter a site that even though they may not know

          4  it is stockpiled with these deadly materials.

          5                 And, so, the whole idea behind this

          6  law, as first put forward in 1998, and subsequently

          7  amended, is to make sure that those places that do

          8  store these substances and use these substances are

          9  properly reporting them so that we can know their

         10  whereabouts and we can make the people that might

         11  have to go in there can be knowledgeable as to what

         12  they may be facing.

         13                 Intro. 47 kind of goes one step

         14  beyond that, and we're looking for a computerized

         15  database that will contain a lot of information,

         16  more information that is currently available, and

         17  there are several members of the Council that have

         18  signed onto this piece of legislation, and we very

         19  much want to hear, I guess first for the benefit of

         20  the members of the Committee that are new to the

         21  Right-to-Know Program, certainly I imagine you'll

         22  give us an oversight, or some overview of the

         23  program and how it works, and we also very much

         24  enjoy hearing your views on Intro. 47.

         25                 We're not going to be voting Intro.
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          2  47 today, we want to get the benefit of your views

          3  on it before we decide what, if anything, we're

          4  going to do with this piece of legislation.

          5                 So, without further ado, I'd like to

          6  welcome you all here. Thank you very much.

          7                 I'd like to call our first panel,

          8  DEP, and Bob, if you could identify yourself for the

          9  record, as well as other members of DEP who are

         10  here, we could proceed with the testimony, but first

         11  we'll I guess call upon Council Member Vallone, we

         12  don't have a Counsel to the Committee present, but

         13  Council Member Vallone will fill in and give the

         14  oath for the people who will be presenting

         15  testimony. So, I will call upon Council Member

         16  Vallone to give the oath.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do you all

         18  swear or affirm that the testimony you give before

         19  this Committee today is the truth, the whole truth,

         20  and nothing but the truth?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We do.

         22                 MS. HANNA: I do.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: I

         24  do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all
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          2  very much. You may consider yourselves under oath.

          3  And if you could identify the members of your team

          4  for the record, and proceed with your testimony.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          6  Good morning, Chairman, and members.

          7                 To my right is Michael Gilsenan,

          8  Assistant Commissioner of Environmental Compliance

          9  at DEP. To my left is the Acting Director of

         10  Division of Emergency Response and Technical

         11  Assessment, which has the Right-to-Know

         12  responsibilities, that's Kim Hanna. She's the acting

         13  director of the Right-to-Know Program. Two very

         14  capable people.

         15                 I am Bob Avaltroni, Deputy

         16  Commissioner for Environmental Compliance, New York

         17  City Department of Environmental Protection.

         18                 On behalf of Commissioner Chris Ward,

         19  I wanted to thank you for this opportunity to

         20  testify on New York City's "Community Right-to-Know

         21  Law." Since the Right-to-Know Program is part of the

         22  Bureau of Environmental Compliance, which I direct,

         23  Commissioner Ward asked me to represent him this

         24  afternoon.

         25                 Before I begin reviewing this
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          2  program, I think Chairman Gennaro and the Committee

          3  are probably concerned about the impact of Fiscal

          4  Year 2003 budget reductions on the program.

          5                 At the Preliminary Budget Hearing,

          6  DEP noted that the Bureau of Environmental

          7  Compliance had submitted a package of expense

          8  reductions and revenue increases to meet its gap

          9  reduction targets.

         10                 The package did not include

         11  reductions in the staff of the Division of Emergency

         12  Response and Technical Assessment (DERTA), of which

         13  the Right-to-Know Program is a part. So that will be

         14  funded in whole.

         15                 As of FY 2002, the funded headcount

         16  of the Right-to-Know program became 12 persons, nine

         17  of whom are inspectors.

         18                 The increase to 12 positions occurred

         19  as a result of the fact that DEP began capturing new

         20  electrical facilities in the Right-to-Know database.

         21  I'll talk about those facilities later in my

         22  statement.

         23                 As a result of these new facilities,

         24  and the accompanying fees, the Right-to-Know

         25  headcount was increased to 12 positions, all of
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          2  which are presently filled.

          3                 In addition, we are continuing a

          4  practice of using site assessment and emergency

          5  response personnel, as they are available to perform

          6  Right-to-Know inspections. There are 10 DERTA

          7  inspectors, all of whom are trained to perform

          8  Right-to-Know compliance inspections. Just to

          9  elaborate on that a little bit, when they do not

         10  have to respond to any type of activity, they will

         11  be handling the Right-to-Know activities and

         12  inspections as well.

         13                 In an overview, the Right-to-Know

         14  Program's primary goal is gathering information to

         15  protect public health and safety, the environment

         16  and public and private property.

         17                 The information is provided to

         18  individuals community organizations and advocacy

         19  groups, among others, so they can be more

         20  knowledgeable about the presence of hazardous

         21  substances.

         22                 Perhaps most importantly, the

         23  Right-to-Know program provides to emergency response

         24  personnel, vital information on hazardous substances

         25  which may be critically important when, for example,
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          2  the Fire Department is responding to a fire at a

          3  commercial facility that uses or stores hazardous

          4  substances.

          5                 The Right-to-Know Law requires

          6  businesses and local government agencies to report

          7  to DEP if they use, store or otherwise handle

          8  hazardous substances, at above threshold reporting

          9  quantities.

         10                 In addition, the presence of

         11  chemicals designated as "extremely hazardous

         12  substances" or EHS's, must also be reported.

         13                 Finally, the facilities reporting the

         14  presence of an EHS are subject to a second reporting

         15  requirement. These facilities are required to

         16  prepare Risk Management Plans in order to minimize

         17  the possibility of, and risks associated with,

         18  accidental releases of an EHS.

         19                 An example, as you alluded to before,

         20  Mr. Chairman, is hydrofluoric acid. It was the

         21  illegal disposal of hydrofluoric acid that was

         22  responsible for the November 12th, 1996 death of

         23  Sanitation Worker Michael Hanly.

         24                 If the personal responsible for that

         25  substance had been storing or disposing of it
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          2  appropriately, Mr. Hanly would be with us and his

          3  family today.

          4                 In recognition of Mr. Hanly's tragic

          5  death, the Council and DEP worked in cooperation to

          6  increase penalties for violation of the local laws

          7  that recognize the potentially fatal consequences of

          8  improper storage, use or handling of hazardous

          9  substances or EHS's.

         10                 I thank you, Mr. Chairman, because I

         11  know you were part of that in a different capacity,

         12  and I also want to reiterate one of the things that

         13  came out of that was the increase of fines, which is

         14  certainly something of significant substance.

         15                 I think more importantly, also to set

         16  the tone of criminal punishment.

         17                 So, if you did something like that,

         18  you would have to pay time for it.

         19                 Before going further, it is important

         20  to note that DEP also receives information on the

         21  presence of hazardous substances pursuant to federal

         22  law, the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act

         23  of 1986, usually known as SARA.

         24                 Within SARA, there is a section that

         25  created a federal Right-to-Know program, upon which
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          2  the local Right-to-Know Program enacted two years

          3  later in '88, as you suggested, was modeled.

          4                 Pursuant to the federal Right-to-Know

          5  Law, businesses must report the presence of

          6  hazardous substances to agencies designated by State

          7  and localities.

          8                 DEP is the local agency designated to

          9  receive information reported under the federal

         10  Right-to-Know Law.

         11                 The information reported to DEP under

         12  local law generally mirrors the information reported

         13  to it under federal law, with an important

         14  difference: the federal law and its implementing

         15  regulations establish different, and usually higher

         16  threshold reporting quantities than the local

         17  Right-to-Know requirements.

         18                 The main repository of all the

         19  information submitted to DEP under the local and

         20  federal Right-to-Know laws is a database to which we

         21  refer as the Community Facility Inventory Database,

         22  or CFID. The CFID is the heart of the Right-to-Know

         23  program. It is the main repository of all the

         24  information on hazardous substances submitted to DEP

         25  by businesses and individuals throughout the City.
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          2                 At this time, there are approximately

          3  5,384 facilities listed in the CFID, which is the

          4  largest number of facilities ever reported in the

          5  history of the Right-to-Know Program.

          6                 As recently as 1996, the CFID

          7  consisted of 3,830 facilities.

          8                 The 36 percent increase in the number

          9  of facilities captured in the CFID is attributable

         10  to the more aggressive targeting of industry groups

         11  that were not complying with the law, and more

         12  successful use of inspectors.

         13                 Of the facilities now in the

         14  database, Queens has 28 percent of the total;

         15  Brooklyn, 27 percent; and Manhattan, 26 percent. The

         16  Bronx has 13 percent of the facilities, and Staten

         17  Island has six percent.

         18                 Aside from the facilities just

         19  mentioned, the CFID also holds information on

         20  approximately 44,454 electrical facilities.

         21                 These facilities are primarily

         22  unmanned transformer stations housed in sidewalk

         23  vaults.

         24                 For the last two years, the presence

         25  of these facilities have been reported to DEP by
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          2  electrical utilities.

          3                 Unlike the other facilities in CFID,

          4  which are usually individual businesses, with widely

          5  differing characteristics, these thousands of

          6  transformers are all owned by a small number of

          7  electrical utilities and the facilities themselves

          8  share a number of characteristics.

          9                 Generally when I refer to the CFID, I

         10  am only referring to the 5,384 facilities that are

         11  not electrical transformer vaults.

         12                 About half of all the facilities in

         13  the CFID are identified with the one of the

         14  following industry groups, dry-cleaning plants,

         15  gasoline service stations, electrical facilities,

         16  vehicle repair and paint shops, telephone

         17  communications.

         18                 The remaining facilities in the

         19  database fall into one of the many other industries

         20  represented in the CFID, such as metal finishing,

         21  photography, jewelry making, dyeing, beverage

         22  bottling and aircraft operation.

         23                 For more information about the

         24  hazardous substances reported in the CFID, the uses

         25  to which these substances are pushed, the industries
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          2  that use them, I can refer you to the most recent

          3  Right-to-Know annual report, dated October 2000.

          4                 It provides a wealth of information

          5  about the CFID and the activities of the

          6  Right-to-Know program.

          7                 In the interest of saving time, I

          8  will not repeat the contents of the annual report in

          9  my testimony this afternoon.

         10                 The annual report is usually

         11  completed in late September of every year, and

         12  mailed to Council members and community boards on or

         13  about October 1st.

         14                 Unfortunately, following the tragedy

         15  of September 11th attacks on the United States, the

         16  Right-to-Know staff, who were obviously

         17  knowledgeable in the area of hazardous materials,

         18  became part of the 9/11 response effort.

         19                 Under these circumstances, we were

         20  not able to complete, submit the 2001 annual report

         21  on time. The 2001 annual report is being finalized

         22  now and will be ready very shortly.

         23                 Part of the job of maintaining CFID

         24  is inspecting the reporting facilities, to make sure

         25  that information is accurate and complete.
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          2                 Equally important is identifying

          3  facilities that should be reporting the presence of

          4  hazardous substances but have failed to do so.

          5                 Both of these tasks require on-site

          6  inspections. During inspections the staff reviews

          7  the facility and compares the results of the

          8  inspection with the information submitted by the

          9  facility to the CFID, assuming they have submitted.

         10                 The Right-to-Know program is of vital

         11  importance in a city where from block to block

         12  industry and residents are intermingled.

         13                 Although the substances used in

         14  commerce and industry can be hazardous, most of the

         15  hazardous substances used in the five boroughs are

         16  used responsively and safely.

         17                 By accurately disclosing to DEP the

         18  presence of hazardous substances that can be

         19  threatening under certain circumstances, industries

         20  in the City reduce the fears of residents as they do

         21  not know what is going on in their neighborhoods.

         22                 That completes the part of my

         23  testimony that focused on a review of the

         24  Right-to-Know program.

         25                 The remainder of my statement
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          2  consists of comments on Intro. 47. This legislation

          3  is an amendment of a local law, usually referred to

          4  as the "spill bill," although it's more formal name

          5  is New York City hazardous substance emergency

          6  response law.

          7                 The legislation would amend the spill

          8  bill by adding a new section that would require DEP

          9  to create a database containing information relating

         10  to the relief of hazardous substances by any agency

         11  responsive person defined in the spill bill.

         12                 The proposed system would include

         13  information available to other agencies, including

         14  police, fire, EMS and DOT concerning the transport

         15  of hazardous substances, the release of hazardous

         16  substances, or the response to the release of

         17  hazardous substances.

         18                 The proposed system would include

         19  information on petroleum products and pipelines as

         20  part of the database. The bill specifies that the

         21  database will be available to Council members,

         22  Council staff and the public.

         23                 With some differences, the database

         24  proposed by Intro. 47 is similar to a system that

         25  DEP is procuring to allow other City agencies
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          2  on-line access to the CFID and other information DEP

          3  has received from facilities at City agencies

          4  pursuant to the spill bill.

          5                 One prominent difference is that

          6  DEP's database will not be made available in its

          7  entirety to the public.

          8                 DEP's database contains material that

          9  under the Right-to-Know Law businesses may designate

         10  as confidential. It also contains material that

         11  emergency response agencies may consider as

         12  inappropriate for public distribution.

         13                 DEP could not make its current

         14  database, or the database proposed in Intro. 47,

         15  fully accessible to the public, due to the

         16  confidential status of some information that is

         17  reported to DEP by businesses.

         18                 There is a provision in the New York

         19  City Right-to-Know Law which allows in some

         20  circumstances for a business to claim trade secret

         21  status for chemical-specific information that may be

         22  of interest to their competitors.

         23                 When trade secret status has been

         24  granted, certain information, although fully

         25  reported to DEP, may not be disclosed to the public.
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          2                 Apart from specific chemical

          3  information unavailable to the public because the

          4  information has been designated a trade secret, DEP

          5  has some reservations about full public access to

          6  all the hazardous substance information maintained

          7  by DEP.

          8                 Businesses provide DEP with detailed

          9  risk management plans outlining where in their

         10  facilities the materials are stored, in what

         11  quantities, access points and a variety of other

         12  information.

         13                 Providing greater public access to

         14  this information for public distribution could pose

         15  a significant security risk.

         16                 In summary, DEP already maintains a

         17  database that contains much of the information

         18  proposed by Intro. 47, with the significant

         19  exception of petroleum and gas pipelines.

         20                 DEP is in the process of replacing

         21  our existing CFID, with one that will allow other

         22  emergency response agencies the online access via

         23  hand-held computers or laptops.

         24                 We believe that creating a hazardous

         25  substance database at DEP that could be more easily
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          2  accessed by other agencies will fulfill the core

          3  purposes intended by Intro. 47.

          4                 Again, on behalf of Commissioner

          5  Ward, I thank you for the opportunity to speak, I'll

          6  be happy to answer any of your questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you. Thanks, Bob.

          9                 Let me just, I'm just highlighting

         10  some things in your statement that I wanted to talk

         11  about.

         12                 Oh, sure, we'd like to -- I would

         13  like to recognize, or I would like to say that we've

         14  been joined by Council Member Vallone and Council

         15  Member Comrie.

         16                 And let me just go back to an earlier

         17  part of your statement, and just help me out just a

         18  little bit here.

         19                 Now, you say the current

         20  Right-to-Know Program gives us the CFID. Now, that

         21  CFID contains information that's provided from the

         22  federal Right-to-Know, as well as our local

         23  Right-to-Know program, right?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

         25  is correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, the CFID has

          3  federal and local, it's in there.

          4                 Now, is that currently available to

          5  the public? I thought that it was.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: You

          7  can come in and take a look at it. I think what I

          8  was suggesting, Mr. Chairman, was with regard to the

          9  risk reports, that would present a security aspect,

         10  as well as trade secret.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. So, let's

         12  say I'm just trying to understand a whole host of

         13  things that were spoken of here today. The CFID has

         14  a wealth of information on it, I guess, and there

         15  are certain things on the CFID regarding hazardous

         16  -- well, no, regarding the emergency, what am I

         17  looking for here, the response plan, or whatever?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: In

         19  certain cases there's a risk management plan. Also

         20  there's identification where items are stored, et

         21  cetera.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: And

         24  those are the things that would be prohibited.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's on the
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          2  database, though, right?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: It is,

          4  yes, on the database. It is with us, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, if someone

          6  from the public or some business interest who wanted

          7  to make some kind of decision as to where they

          8  wanted to cite their business and wanted to know

          9  what was in the neighborhood or whatever, could have

         10  access to some of the information?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Some.

         12  Yes, that is correct. We would obviously look at it,

         13  and as I suggested, if it not pose a problem from a

         14  security perspective --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Or not

         17  violate a trade secret element, that's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. So, just

         19  my own sort of, you know, rudimentary understanding.

         20  Information on the CFID would be available to the

         21  public and to businesses as appropriate so-to-speak?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

         23  is correct, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be a

         25  way to say it?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, just

          4  switching gears a little bit, the CFID is going to

          5  be replaced by this other database?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          7  We have in place $1.3 million to fund a database

          8  which I suggested in my testimony really culls out a

          9  great segment of Intro. 47 and I am hoping, and, in

         10  fact, I would like very much to work with the

         11  Council with regard to bringing that up and online.

         12                 So, I think, you know, to go through

         13  some of the questions that you might have, we are

         14  not in opposition by any means to the principle as a

         15  concept of Intro. 47. We are just raising certain

         16  areas that may be problematic, but we certainly

         17  welcome your participation in the process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So this new

         19  database, has the spec been written for this? Is

         20  there an RFP? Or already you guys know what you're

         21  going to have on this, right?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         23  have the specs written, it will be going out, yes,

         24  through the process.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this new
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          2  database, one of the good things about it is that it

          3  will be, it will be available on these hand-held and

          4  laptop kind of things, as well it will contain new

          5  and different information which is currently not on

          6  the CFID.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          8  What it will do, actually, it will make it a lot

          9  easier, obviously, as I suggested before, fire,

         10  police or any responder is out there, they will be

         11  able to access that immediately, instantaneously, by

         12  address.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Well,

         14  what kind of information, maybe you went over this a

         15  little bit in your statement, but what kind of

         16  information will be available on this new database

         17  as envisioned that is, you know, not on the CFID

         18  right now? How does that mesh with what we're

         19  looking for in Intro. 47?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I'm

         21  going to let Commissioner Gilsenan answer this.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Did you

         23  get it? It was kind of a long question.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: No,

         25  no. I got it. I understand it.
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          2                 Just to go back to what Bob said,

          3  when information comes --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

          5  just --

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: You

          7  can't hear me?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. If you

          9  could just state your name for the record.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

         11  Sorry. Michael Gilsenan, Assistant Commissioner of

         12  Bureau of Environmental Compliance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: To

         15  go back to what Bob said, when the information comes

         16  into the CFID, okay, the CFID is the main

         17  repository, but all that EHS information that is

         18  captured there is kept on a separate database.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Separate from

         20  the CFID?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

         22  Separate from the CFID.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Hang on.

         24  You have to give me a chance to catch up here.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, you got the

          4  CFID, here it is, it's right here.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

          6  Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And then you've

          8  got this other thing over here that has the --

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: All

         10  the pertinent --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The emergency,

         12  the EHS stuff.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: The

         14  EHS, the emergency response plans that the companies

         15  who are in that category file with us, what the new

         16  computer system will do.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that

         18  automated, that other module, or whatever?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: No,

         20  it's not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So you get this,

         22  your EHS information and they're stored, manual

         23  records or whatever.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

         25  Right.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, you've got

          3  the CFID, which is automated, and you've got the --

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN:

          5  Repository.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Repository,

          7  right. Got it.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: So,

          9  what the new computer system will do is it will

         10  allow the emergency people who are out in the field,

         11  not only to have the access to the CFID information,

         12  but also to the RMP information, the hazardous

         13  material information on where the storage is.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         15                 Oh, so this will, you know, bring the

         16  EHS stuff --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: It

         18  will enhance it, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Into the

         20  automated world and make it, you know, pinpoint

         21  access to all people who need it in the field and so

         22  on.

         23                 Now, how does that sink up with what

         24  we're looking for, and, you know, Intro. 47 and what

         25  we're getting at there?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: In

          3  essence, that's what I said, the similarities are so

          4  great it's almost scary. We felt the need for this

          5  just as the Council felt the need for this

          6  information. I think with the exception of certain

          7  elements like petroleum, where we don't have

          8  jurisdiction, and there's certain road blocks in

          9  terms of, as I said, trade secret information, it's

         10  security information, but in essence it almost

         11  mirrors what the Council has suggested.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: And

         14  that's why, again, you know, working unified, and I

         15  know you've had conversations with Commissioner

         16  Ward, we look forward to working with you in every

         17  regard.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, well, let

         19  me just back up a little bit with regard to the

         20  Right-to-Know program as it's currently working.

         21  This also is oversight into that program. I won't

         22  take up too much time, I certainly want to let other

         23  members of the Council get at you with some

         24  questions.

         25                 You mention in your statement that
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          2  there are 5,384 facilities listed, and that's up

          3  quite a bit from a couple of years back, when it was

          4  3,000, whenever it was.

          5                 Has DEP made some kind of assessment

          6  or estimate of the total number of the facilities

          7  that, you know, should be reporting into this

          8  program and are not?

          9                 I mean, what is the total universe of

         10  entities that should be reporting, and how many of

         11  them -- obviously, we know we are getting 5,384, not

         12  counting those transformer tanks.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so, that's

         15  5,384 out of, what is the total universe? Is it

         16  10,000, is it 7,000, what's your best hunch?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I'll

         18  answer this in several phases.

         19                 Number one, we don't know what the

         20  total population, I don't think anyone does, but the

         21  36 percent increase that I alluded to in my

         22  testimony is representative of what has transpired

         23  over the last couple of years. Compared to where we

         24  were beyond that, the increase is so much more

         25  phenomenal.
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          2                 And what we did was we tried to

          3  target industries that were most likely to store

          4  hazardous materials, and we did everything from

          5  going through every instrument available, including

          6  the yellow pages, to identify types of businesses

          7  that would fall in that purview. And we feel we've

          8  been very successful in identifying the significant

          9  populations of those likely to be using hazardous

         10  materials, and if anyone has any other suggestions

         11  -- also, as Mike just suggested, we attempted in

         12  the community outreach as well to get that

         13  information --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: But we

         16  are open to any other suggestion.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got a

         18  question.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It seems that in

         21  order to get the best use of the program, we really

         22  have to get everybody into it, and, you know, I

         23  guess sort of like a threshold question is, it seems

         24  like it would be a pretty important function to try

         25  to figure out, you know, who and where these various
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          2  entities that should be reporting and are not

          3  reporting, and I guess my question is, is there

          4  anyone in DEP who has that as their sole job? They

          5  come to work every day and this is what they do,

          6  they try to find people who are --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: The

          8  staff, as I suggested, Mr. Chair, in the

          9  Right-to-Know program, do that on a constant basis.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But I mean, sort

         11  of like their sole function. I mean, we've got this

         12  person does this, we've got this person that does

         13  this, but we've got this person over here, or these

         14  two people over there, and their job is to take this

         15  5,384 number and bring it up to really where it

         16  should be, and find out whether we're going after

         17  6,000, 7,000, 8,000, because you, yourself, said

         18  that we don't really know what the whole universe

         19  is, and just getting a handle on how big that

         20  universe is can sort of inform the City's steps

         21  towards getting everybody in that universe. Because

         22  we know if we're at 5,300 and we're going for

         23  10,000, then that will inform, you know, budget

         24  decisions and so on about how we get these people.

         25  But if we're, you know, 5,300 out of 6,000, then
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          2  that ain't bad. You know what I mean? So, like I

          3  think we have to know what the universe is, and it

          4  seems like you almost need an investigator as

          5  someone whose mission it is to find out those people

          6  who should be reporting and who aren't and to bang

          7  them out.

          8                 Which gets to my next question as to

          9  enforcement of people who aren't reporting, you

         10  know, if I'm a company and I have EHS's and I have

         11  these kinds of substances and I'm over the

         12  threshold, and I'm not reporting, I'm not filing my

         13  FIF and so on, I should be somewhat scared of DEP or

         14  somebody finding out that I'm not doing this, and,

         15  you know, is DEP finding them out, are they getting,

         16  you know, violations and so on? It's my, you know,

         17  interest to make sure that we expand the universe.

         18  So, I got to hear from you that we got somebody

         19  whose mission it is, because we at least have to

         20  know how big the universe is. And we don't really

         21  know that now.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         23  to answer your first question, of course we want to

         24  know every facility. We want to know every business

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll come with

          3  them, too.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: --

          5  That has those materials.

          6                 Obviously, as I mentioned, Kim Hanna

          7  is the director of our Right-to-Know program, she

          8  and her staff, a very capable staff, are constantly

          9  doing inspections, are constantly looking to see

         10  where there is this potential business that might

         11  store hazardous materials. Also, they thought of

         12  their mission, obviously they do inspections, and

         13  several years ago, quite frankly, that organization

         14  was not taken seriously.

         15                 The inspections, I can tell you --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who was not

         17  taking it seriously?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: The

         19  public was not taking it seriously because it had no

         20  teeth. And, so, what happened, we have conducted

         21  more inspections in one year than the first nine

         22  years of the entire program, and we're not going to

         23  rest on our laurels, we're going to continue to do

         24  that.

         25                 So, by being visible, by showing
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          2  communities as an example, by working with you and

          3  your constituents, because they are constituents, we

          4  will be there in any way, shape or form to ensure

          5  they are not put in peril.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to ask

          7  one more question then I'm going to go to a second

          8  round. I want to get some other members here that

          9  want to answer questions, I also want to recognize

         10  Council Member Serrano. I want to point out that

         11  Council Member Serrano, a member of this Committee,

         12  has just joined us.

         13                 I'm kind of really into this whole

         14  issue of trying to get people who should be

         15  identified, identified. Is there any way, because of

         16  limited staff and so on, is there any way that we

         17  could do sort of like an RFP or something and sort

         18  of job this out? And like the focus of that RFP is,

         19  you know, find those companies that are sort of

         20  outside the system? I mean, could we do that by

         21  contract? I mean, I'm just trying to figure out a

         22  way to get it done.

         23                 I really want to say that, you know,

         24  while the program is good, and we're going to be

         25  moving it forward by doing this new computer system
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          2  and you want to work with us on doing this, you

          3  know, maybe do some sort of melding of Intro. 47,

          4  and I don't know where this is all going to go but

          5  it seems like a linchpin in this whole thing is

          6  getting people into the program, and, you know,

          7  wouldn't it be nice if one thing that was coming out

          8  of this hearing was that, okay, we've got, you know,

          9  sort of like a new found imperative to identify

         10  those areas that are still outside the system? Even

         11  if we could just dedicate -- I mean, it's one thing

         12  to pull off staff and do that, and maybe we can just

         13  do it by contract or RFP, or just get somebody to

         14  find these people.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Our

         16  objective is clearly the same, there's no question

         17  about that.

         18                 I just don't know --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You like the

         20  idea, I know. I can tell you like the idea.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Is

         22  5,384 the total population? That's something I can't

         23  say yes to. I wish I could say, oh, absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But don't you

         25  think we have to get there? We've got to find out
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          2  the number.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That's

          4  not for the lack of trying, and it's not for the

          5  lack of manpower, it's almost what I would challenge

          6  everyone to do, including our group, is to put our

          7  thinking caps on to see possibly what industry we

          8  might have missed.

          9                 Because as you know, in the City you

         10  have a spiraling participation of industry that

         11  sometimes moves. We are targeted segments of the

         12  population of the businesses that we feel would be

         13  most likely to retain hazardous materials.

         14                 If you folks have any other ideas,

         15  any way that you can identify a certain segment that

         16  we feel that we have jointly missed, we'd be happy

         17  to do that.

         18                 But I don't think it's the answer, I

         19  think throwing people at it, Mr. Chairman, is not

         20  the answer. I think we the sufficient people to do

         21  that, if our thought process hasn't been in totality

         22  and correct that that might be a different story.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, it seems

         24  that, you know, notwithstanding the good efforts of

         25  people in the Department, you know, there are folks
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          2  out there that still continue to allude us.

          3                 And, you know, sometimes a

          4  consultant, or a contractor, or whatever, I mean

          5  they're like good for brain waves, this is what

          6  their supposed to be all about, right? They're

          7  supposed to be the people with the thinking caps,

          8  and supposed to be able to get this done. Maybe

          9  there's a way to configure, you know, some sort of

         10  contract, we just send these guys out there to say,

         11  okay, here's the thing, tell us how you're going to

         12  find these people and put in an RFP or something and

         13  then the work product will be, you know, here they

         14  are.

         15                 You've got 53, 84 whatever, and

         16  there's an additional 2,000, 3,000, 4,000, and here

         17  they are like, you know, go get them. But it seems

         18  like that would be, you know, a nice work product to

         19  have on the table, and my last thing is, do me a

         20  favor, I don't want to be too presumptuous, see what

         21  the Commissioner thinks about it.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         23  certainly will.

         24                 And, again, our objective is one in

         25  the same, and if we have another opportunity,
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          2  another way to achieve our collective objective, we

          3  will certainly --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just think, we

          5  go to contractors, and, you know, consultants for

          6  all sorts of special things, this might be something

          7  that might make some sense, I don't know.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: And we

          9  certainly would like your recommendation in that

         10  area.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's my

         12  recommendation in that area.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: And we

         14  will take that back and be back to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Okay,

         16  I'll perhaps come back on a second round. I'd like

         17  to recognize Council Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 Welcome, Mr. Avaltroni, it's been a

         21  pleasure to work with you in the past and we look

         22  forward to working with you.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         24  Likewise. Likewise, Councilman.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Regarding
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          2  this intro, and your entire system right now, your

          3  entire database, I've spoken with many Hazmat

          4  workers and they've explained to me that the system

          5  in place now is that if there is a fire somewhere,

          6  at a factory or somewhere, along those lines, they

          7  actually have to send a person down to this database

          8  who has to go through the files, hundreds, perhaps

          9  thousands of files that are down there until they

         10  locate the file on whatever location they are

         11  fighting the fire at, and at that point looked

         12  through the file and found out if there's anything

         13  in that plant that they're fighting that could be

         14  hazardous to the public, which obviously is a waste

         15  of time, manpower, and could create a hazardous

         16  situation to the public.

         17                 That is what I found out on my own,

         18  but why don't you tell us first, what is the system

         19  in place right now, the database that exists and how

         20  is it accessed in times of emergency like that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         22  Councilman. The Fire Department, I think who you're

         23  alluding to, does have access to the information.

         24  Whatever we have, they would have when they do

         25  respond to a situation, but I guess that leads us
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          2  into speaking about further computerization which

          3  we've both acknowledged as something that's very

          4  necessary.

          5                 So, while I don't know that the

          6  problem as acute has been identified to you, we are

          7  going to make it better again with the use of the

          8  application where if they get out there, they have a

          9  laptop, they identify it a lot quicker and it makes

         10  their job easier.

         11                 That is our sole objective -- well,

         12  not our sole objective, it's our major objective,

         13  and that's providing safety to those that are

         14  responding, and including our own group here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, let me

         16  say that I think that should be your main objective

         17  at this point. It defies common sense that there are

         18  still people running down and pulling out paper

         19  files in times of emergency when we could have

         20  access on the computers, and I commend you for

         21  starting that program, but I do need to know, I

         22  think we all do, when is the starting date for the

         23  system that you're speaking about?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         25  as I alluded to, Councilman, in my testimony, it was

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  well underway, and unfortunately the events of 9/11

          3  sort of circumvented our process a bit because as I

          4  said, the Division of Emergency Response and

          5  Technical Assessment, which is one of the finest

          6  groups in this City, was obviously dealing with the

          7  issues of 9/11.

          8                 We are focused to move on, to move

          9  the process, and hopefully within a very reasonable

         10  time, what we are both agreeing is necessary will

         11  come to fruition.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Again, I

         13  completely agree, that was -- we need a little bit

         14  more of a definite answer than this. I don't think

         15  we can stress how serious this is if people are

         16  running to a paper files at a time of emergency when

         17  there could be hazardous materials at a fire. The

         18  computer age started long before September 11th, and

         19  I'm kind of at a loss as to why this system didn't

         20  exist long before September 11th.

         21                 Again, what is the starting date for

         22  this new system?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I can

         24  tell you again, we have the appropriate funding. We

         25  will go out with the RFP process and we will commit
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          2  to have this up before the end of the year.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, before

          4  the end of the year is a start, I like that. And if

          5  we can assist you in any way in that regard, if this

          6  intro or a separate intro would help you, you let us

          7  know because we stand behind that effort and we will

          8  continue oversight responsibilities to make sure it

          9  does happen.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         11  certainly look forward to your participation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Vallone.

         15                 Before I go on to Council Member

         16  Comrie, who is one of the sponsors, a main sponsor

         17  of Intro. 47, we want to welcome a group that's

         18  here, and Council Member Gerson is handing to me --

         19  okay, we'd like to welcome the students from

         20  Stuyvesant High School, 9th grade, and, of course,

         21  this is the group of folks that had to be relocated

         22  after September 11th, and the terrible tragedy that

         23  your school suffered in the area, we'd like to

         24  welcome you all here.

         25                 This is a hearing on the Committee on
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          2  Environmental Protection and we're having a hearing

          3  on some toxic substances, how they're stored by

          4  businesses. We want to make sure that firefighters

          5  who have to respond to serious emergencies know

          6  where these toxic materials might. We're also

          7  talking about a bill that would make the City

          8  catalogue all the various spills of toxic

          9  substances, and for the future reference, and so we

         10  have members here of the Committee and members of

         11  the Department of Environmental Protection who are

         12  testifying before the Committee, and, so we're

         13  having an oversight hearing where we're looking into

         14  a certain program that the City runs. We're also

         15  doing a legislative hearing at the same time, and

         16  we're looking at a bill that we may pass into law,

         17  some very smart people are giving us some

         18  information on the bill, they have a bunch of people

         19  that are going to be testifying today, they're going

         20  to have some ideas on it. We're going to take their

         21  ideas and perhaps make the bill better. And we might

         22  have to do this a couple of times, but at the end of

         23  the process we'll get a bill that's good.

         24                 One thing that's good about this area

         25  is that you have Council Member Gerson as your
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          2  Council member, and he's very gracious to bring you

          3  here and we're very glad to have them as a member of

          4  the Council, and I'd like to ask all the members of

          5  the Committee, as well as our guests, to give a

          6  round of applause to our guests from Stuyvesant High

          7  School.

          8                 So, welcome to City Hall. I hope you

          9  enjoy your visit. I hope that each of you will

         10  testify at this hearing. If you want to testify

         11  here, you've got to fill out a slip, and, so, thank

         12  you all very much for coming, and stay as long as

         13  you like, and enjoy your visit to City Hall.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 Council Member Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         17  afternoon, Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner, and I

         18  came late, I didn't get the names of the other

         19  people.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         21  to my right is Michael Gilsenan, Assistant

         22  Commissioner; and to my left is Acting Director of

         23  the Right-to-Know Program, Kim Hanna.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         25  afternoon.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Good

          3  afternoon, Councilman.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I appreciate

          5  your coming out this afternoon, and I appreciate

          6  your comments, and I especially appreciate that

          7  you're keeping that program intact, as far as the

          8  number of persons and the headcount, because as you

          9  can see from these young people that were attend

         10  Stuyvesant High School, the Right-to-Know is

         11  critical, and as you are all aware, they had

         12  environmental issues with getting back in their

         13  school and trying to find out if it's safe to be in

         14  the neighborhood, and that's the essence of what we

         15  were trying to put into our bill to make sure that

         16  community residents can feel comfortable with the

         17  entities around their particular neighborhoods, and

         18  also entities that have transitioned over the years,

         19  especially gas stations and other.

         20                 In my district, as you know, we have

         21  a site on 180th Street that used to be a dry-cleaner

         22  or a commercial cleaner that now had leaked perc

         23  into the 180th Street area, but if you just moved in

         24  there five years ago, you wouldn't know that. That's

         25  why I'm concerned about the Right-to-Know and the
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          2  right to be able to research and be clear on what

          3  the prior usage of a facility was so that we don't

          4  wind up putting a day care center on top of a site

          5  that had MTB or perc or some other hazardous waste.

          6  So, I appreciate what you're trying to do and I

          7  would just like to ask you for some clarification on

          8  what you talked about with the secretiveness of some

          9  of these businesses.

         10                 I can understand in a competitive

         11  environment that there would be trade secret status,

         12  but are you saying that you don't even know what

         13  those chemicals are when a company puts that kind of

         14  codicil in front of what they're doing?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: No,

         16  Councilman. We are aware of this. This is something

         17  that is given to us, but not for public consumption,

         18  and I guess they do feel, and I think as the law was

         19  written, there is competitiveness in their business,

         20  and, so, it's in essence complying with the law.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: But

         23  DEP is cognizant of what they have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the Fire

         25  Department would have that information?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

          3  is correct, Councilman.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And any other

          5  emergency service would have that information

          6  immediately?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

          8  would be able to provide that to them, yes, and we

          9  do work with them, obviously, in responding to

         10  incidents.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         12                 So, you're saying that your problem

         13  with the law is that these types of substances would

         14  be dangerous if the public would be aware of what

         15  they were? I don't really understand why public

         16  knowledge of hazardous substance would be difficult

         17  for the public to comprehend?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         19  think it might be more in line with a business

         20  person having a substance that may be different than

         21  his competitor or her competitor might have, might

         22  provide a leading edge for them in doing business.

         23  So, I think that would be the essence of what the

         24  trade secret status would be.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I can
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          2  understand somewhat the trade secret piece, but what

          3  I'm concerned about the Right-to-Know piece is not

          4  necessarily the names and make-ups of the chemicals,

          5  but just the fact that there is a site within a

          6  neighborhood that is considered an unsafe site for

          7  children to play near or for people to do other

          8  types of activities that they may feel comfortable

          9  doing in other places. So, I'm concerned with the

         10  level of reporting as to no reporting on that type

         11  of facility, that we could have some kind of listing

         12  that would at least alert the community that that is

         13  not a safe place for them to maybe even establish

         14  any kind of community facility near or close to. You

         15  don't have to necessarily list the chemicals or the

         16  ingredients or whatever it may be to protect that

         17  business, I'm all for protecting a local business

         18  that's trying to thrive in the City, but on the

         19  other hand, I don't want to put my constituents at

         20  risk by having them not know that a site is there.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I'm

         22  going to let Ms. Hanna have her first statement.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         24                 MS. HANNA: Sir, the Right-to-Know

         25  program is responsible for collecting information
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          2  from facilities that are in business and are

          3  actively performing their operations. It collects

          4  information about the chemicals that are used and

          5  stored and handled at those premises as the facility

          6  conducts business.

          7                 If the facility, the RTK program

          8  doesn't get involved with facilities or plots of

          9  land or anything like that where there may be

         10  contamination in the ground or in the building or

         11  anything like that, the scope of Right-to-Know

         12  doesn't address those issues. In that case, if, for

         13  example, Right-to-Know knew there was a business

         14  operating there containing certain materials and

         15  they closed down their business, we would know that

         16  because we go out and do regular inspections of

         17  these facilities.

         18                 Now, if we tried to access a certain

         19  facility that is no longer open, what we would do is

         20  refer that to our hazardous materials emergency

         21  response unit who under the spill bill can address

         22  those issues so they can assess, well, did this

         23  company leave all their chemicals behind, are they

         24  in rusted drums and leaking into the sump pits and

         25  the underground cavities of the building, and could
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          2  it possibly lead to environmental contamination or

          3  impact the health of the public?

          4                 And then what they will do is they

          5  will order, they'll find the facility owners that

          6  abandon these materials there that's causing this

          7  program that you may be, I believe you're referring

          8  to, and they will order clean-up of the facility and

          9  of the building and they will take care of that part

         10  of it. And if necessary, if there's underground

         11  contamination or anything like that, then we will

         12  bring, the Hazmat team will bring in the DEC, the

         13  New York State DEC, to address underground issues,

         14  so I just wanted to point out the Right-to-Know Law

         15  won't address, you know, contaminated site, but they

         16  address active businesses where people come and go

         17  every day, perform their functions, and hopefully in

         18  a safe environment.

         19                 So, what you're referring to,

         20  actually, would spill over to other art groups that

         21  would address --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Let me

         23  just say, Council member, Miss Hanna is also, as I

         24  suggested before, the Division of Emergency Response

         25  and Technical Assessment. She is a responder, a very
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          2  qualified responder, and the reason we put the

          3  Right-to-Know under that area would allow us the

          4  flexibility, not only from a manpower perspective,

          5  but from the expertise, as you just heard.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 I appreciate that answer, and you're

          8  talking about other types of sites, but I'm talking

          9  about an existing site that is actually operating a

         10  chemical, and I think that the Right-to-Know Law, or

         11  at least there should be a more visual signage to

         12  make sure that the community is not impacted by

         13  inadvertently maybe siting a facility or doing

         14  something on a public -- I have some sites in my

         15  district now, I know one works with plastics, making

         16  different things, and, you know, there are other

         17  sites that are extremely non-conforming to

         18  residential life, let's put it that way, and their

         19  signage would not indicate that to anyone.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         21  Council Member, we avail ourselves to you, and

         22  certainly please report that to us, and we'd be glad

         23  to go out and inspect that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right, I'd

         25  appreciate that. I'll definitely let you know.
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          2                 And just on my last question, the

          3  differences between -- what are the differences

          4  between the federal Right-to-Know requirements and

          5  the City's law?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: The

          7  City's, as I suggested, are more stringent. The

          8  reportable levels are less in New York City which

          9  means more, it makes it more stringent. So, I think

         10  we're very proud, and I think you acknowledged, Mr.

         11  Chairman, someone who was responsible for righting

         12  this a long time ago in 1988, and we commend them

         13  for that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I appreciate

         15  from reading your testimony that the continued

         16  efforts of the Administration to try and be more

         17  proactive with these things, and I'm sure there's

         18  been continued discussions. We can work out some of

         19  these differences that you have. But I'm glad to see

         20  that you're closer to the essence of the bill, and

         21  we can deal with some of these questions and issues

         22  regarding public access.

         23                 I think at some point we have to at

         24  least have not full public disclosure but public

         25  knowledge, so that we can better protect our
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          2  residents and homeowners.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          4  Councilman, we commend you for your foresight and

          5  the introduction of the bill, we look forward to

          6  working with you. As I said, any suggestion this

          7  Committee might have, we look forward to working

          8  with you as a partner.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did

         10  Commissioner Ward start yet?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         12  and I am very pleased to have him here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: He's a

         15  tremendous, tremendous leader.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member Comrie.

         20                 Before I go to our next questioner,

         21  I'd like to indicate that we're joined by Council

         22  Member Jennings, Council Member DeBlasio, and

         23  Council Member Gale Brewer in the audience, who has

         24  joined us as well, it's good to have you. And just

         25  before I call on the next questioner, one thing that
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          2  came to mind is that some of the issues that you

          3  speak of with regard to Intro. 47 has to do with the

          4  people who are storing and using the materials and

          5  so on, because that's already captured by the other

          6  program; what if it was a spill database? Do you

          7  know what I mean? What if we took out the storage

          8  aspect of it and made it just like a spill thing.

          9  Because then you don't have the confidentiality of

         10  any of that stuff, because the stuff is already in

         11  the ground and people certainly have a right to know

         12  like what's going on in the ground, and to the

         13  extent that we can take out the storage component

         14  and make it like, you know, sort of like -- I just

         15  wanted to plant that as food for thought. I'll come

         16  back to that because I don't want to -- that's you

         17  know, what's on my mind. So, when I come back for a

         18  second round, we'll talk about that a little bit,

         19  but I want to call upon the next questioner, Council

         20  Member Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Actually, the

         22  Chairman sort of took up what I was about to say,

         23  and maybe I misunderstood what you were saying but

         24  as you were talking, it struck me that you were

         25  talking about improving the database about hazardous
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          2  substances that are currently being utilized or

          3  stored, but this bill, although it does in fact deal

          4  with that, really it's major for us, and I think

          5  what Councilman Comrie was getting at was a

          6  reporting all spills, that's the major thrust of the

          7  bill, that people in the public should be able to

          8  know when there has been a spill and what was

          9  spilled and what was done to ameliorate the effects

         10  of that spill. That's, as I read this, the major

         11  thrust of this, and I don't think -- maybe you

         12  addressed it, but it wasn't clear to me.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         14  apologize if I wasn't clear.

         15                 We have that information with respect

         16  to spills and our plan is to link this to the

         17  system. So that that might answer both of your

         18  questions, either that or confuse you even more.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, the part

         20  of the bill that refers to having all spills

         21  available and reported and available to the public,

         22  you support that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         24  we do. And we have that presently in existence,

         25  because that is not, you see that doesn't fall under
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          2  the purview of trade secret or security risk. And

          3  I'm sure we can work off line and as partners to

          4  correct this, and I apologize if you misunderstood

          5  what I was attempting to say.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, well,

          7  I'm glad to hear that.

          8                 Let me say that I share some concern

          9  over parts of this bill that talk about nowhere to

         10  access various facilities. I don't want to give the

         11  terrorists a roadmap, and that's on the second page,

         12  I, myself, even though I'm a sponsor of this have

         13  some concern about that.

         14                 The other thing I was going to ask is

         15  whether your system functioned effectively after the

         16  September 11th attack, because obviously there were

         17  hazardous substances that were in the trade center

         18  area and I was wondering whether this system

         19  functioned effectively to tell people where those

         20  chemicals were and such.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         22  Councilman, it did not impact us. Obviously, the

         23  only impact it had was it moving a little more

         24  diligently with Con Ed, because they were

         25  preoccupied in handling some of the situations that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  evolved out of 9/11. But to answer your question,

          3  no, it did not impact us.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, that's

          5  not what I meant.

          6                 When after 9/11, I assume that they

          7  immediately, you accessed your database --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          9  We knew where the transformers were.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did it reveal

         11  what you thought it should reveal? And subsequent to

         12  that now in the last month, have you been able to

         13  ascertain whether the database actually identified

         14  those?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         16  we were able to instantaneously identify, for

         17  instance, many of the components that did exist

         18  within the Trade Center area. And I won't go into

         19  specifics, but there was nothing that we could not

         20  identify.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, you feel

         22  that afterwards there were a lot of comments that

         23  you didn't know what was being released into the

         24  air, and that people may be being poisoned and

         25  things of that sort, that's not your sense? Your
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          2  sense is that we did know what was there.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

          4  is correct, Councilman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Koppell.

          8                 I'm just seeing if any other members

          9  have questions for now?

         10                 I have one. Surprise, surprise.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I have one.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, Council

         13  Member Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: One additional

         15  thing. How many times has the Hazardous Material

         16  Unit responded to a hazardous waste site last year

         17  that had prior contamination?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry to

         19  jump in here, but I actually missed the question. I

         20  didn't hear it because I was talking, but could you

         21  just repeat it for my benefit?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh. How many

         23  times has the Hazardous Material Unit, in other

         24  words, come out to a site that had -- within the

         25  last year, have you had to go back to a site that
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          2  had prior contamination?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          4  Councilman, we responded to approximately 1,300

          5  incidents. I would be glad to go back and provide

          6  you with areas that we had to respond a second time.

          7  I don't have that information directly available for

          8  you. There were over 1,300 responses.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would

         10  appreciate you giving that to the Chair.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         12  would be very happy to.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you, Councilman Comrie.

         16                 Looking through the MMR for 2002, it

         17  indicates that DEP conducted about 2,400

         18  Right-to-Know inspections, and of those there were

         19  374 violations written, and the MMR also reports

         20  that the case resolution rate was just a little

         21  below 50 percent, which is much lower than the other

         22  violations that are written for air, noise and

         23  asbestos. Air is at almost 80 percent, noise is 88

         24  percent, 97 percent for asbestos, and Right-to-Know

         25  program 49.2. I guess these cases are more difficult
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          2  to resolve, they can speak to the --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          4  Precisely, Mr. Chairman. That falls under the

          5  Environmental Control Board. There are

          6  administrative law judges, and I think you hit it

          7  right on the nose, it's a lot more complex where

          8  again they judge things on the merit of each case.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Is this a

         10  matter of concern, or is there some fundamental

         11  problem with regard to the way the violations are

         12  being written, that they're being challenged? I'm

         13  just trying to peel the onion here, and is there

         14  anything that we can do to sort of rectify this or

         15  improve the resolution rate?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: It

         17  certainly is not a problem with regard to the

         18  deficiency in the way the summons is written.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just for my own

         20  edification, what would it be? Asbestos is like 87

         21  percent.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GILSENAN: If I

         23  may? The Right-to-Know program was just included

         24  onto the ECB case resolution system. We probably

         25  think that might be, we have to go back and look at
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          2  the numbers. We win pretty much the majority of our

          3  cases.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I know. It

          5  just mentions here that the case resolution rate for

          6  the Right-to-Know violations is 49.2. That was the

          7  annual actual, the four-month actual is 43.3, and

          8  the Fiscal 2002, the plan was only 50 percent. So

          9  that was what was planned for Fiscal 2002. So, it

         10  seems that there was some thought put into this. If

         11  the target is only 50 percent, and, you know,

         12  current resolution rate is -- for Fiscal 2001, the

         13  annual actual number was 49.2, and the target for

         14  2002 was only eight-tenths of a percent higher, you

         15  know, 50 percent. Which means we're setting a pretty

         16  low target, and there's got to be some reason.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We are

         18  going to take a look at that for you, but I don't

         19  want anybody to think that it might be a deficiency

         20  in the MMR, because we generally stand behind that,

         21  but we will certainly look at it.

         22                 The only thing that comes to mind,

         23  and I know I'm under oath, don't hold me to just a

         24  guess, is that we did include Con Ed who came into

         25  compliance, so that might have skewed the numbers a
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          2  bit, but I'm only taking a guess at it, but we will

          3  come back to you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How would that

          5  kind of thing effect anything? In other words, they

          6  had a bunch of outstanding stuff or whatever?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

          8  over the years, and as I've said, for the first time

          9  we brought the Con Ed and the electrical folks into

         10  this phase, which I think --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He's talking

         12  about you, Andy.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Which

         14  I think is a very big step in the right direction,

         15  and Con Ed was very responsive.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And I just

         17  want to also -- we have had hearings from time to

         18  time throughout the years on this issue, and having

         19  the Right-to-Know inspectors that are sent out to,

         20  you know, make these inspections, and we always want

         21  more of these people going out there doing that. One

         22  thing we haven't talked a lot about is what happens

         23  when they go to a site? If you can take us through

         24  the inspection process? I'm an inspector and I'm

         25  showing up, am I announced or unannounced, or, you
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          2  know, what do I do when I go there, and what

          3  happens?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I'm

          5  going to allow Ms. Hanna to answer that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do I get coffee,

          7  or what happens? Do they give me coffee?

          8                 MS. HANNA: No, that won't happen.

          9                 Well, first of all, the Right-to-Know

         10  inspections are preplanned on a monthly basis. All

         11  the inspectors have the preplanned schedule for each

         12  given month --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you speak a

         14  little closer to the microphone?

         15                 MS. HANNA:-- To perform their

         16  inspections at the facilities. The facilities, the

         17  way we do our inspections is we make sure that the

         18  inspectors are checking facilities within the same

         19  area code so that they don't waste time traveling

         20  from point to point in the City.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MS. HANNA: When they enter the

         23  facility, I never had a problem where they didn't

         24  let them in. They will wait, sometimes they will

         25  wait a little while for the owner or a foreman or a
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          2  supervisor of some kind, somebody in the facility

          3  that represents some, that has some amount of

          4  responsibility, to walk them through.

          5                 When the inspector goes through, they

          6  always have -- assuming their facility did file the

          7  year before and they had the FIF with them, they had

          8  already reviewed that and they sort of know what to

          9  expect, but they're going through that facility

         10  looking as though they haven't reviewed this form

         11  and they're looking for more things that are not

         12  necessarily included. A lot of companies will omit

         13  it, or they will just make a mistake and leave

         14  something out. They learn about what the operation

         15  of the facility is, they can talk to the workers

         16  there, to the owner, whoever is available. They find

         17  out what the processes are involved with the

         18  chemicals, if any hazardous waste are generated,

         19  where bulk storage is kept, do they have fire

         20  cabinets or laboratories where miscellaneous things

         21  are kept, they're going to look at every little

         22  thing.

         23                 They're also going to keep a general

         24  eye out for any major violations that are not

         25  related to Right-to-Know. If they see drums of
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          2  tolulene stored near the boiler, that's a very bad

          3  thing, so they're going to not only look at that and

          4  note it, but they're going to refer it to the Fire

          5  Department, as well, for inspection, to fire

          6  prevention.

          7                 They're also, since the inspectors

          8  are chemical engineers, they're all college

          9  graduates. They look at two things, mostly the

         10  chemical inventory, they want to look for

         11  incompatible storage of materials.  A lot of

         12  companies don't realize they'll put incompatible

         13  materials together, and if the accident occurs, that

         14  will make the accident that much worse.

         15                 They will advise the company that

         16  they have to separate the materials, how they should

         17  be separated, what containers they should be in, if

         18  they've been transferred from their main container

         19  into, you know, an unacceptable container for that

         20  chemical.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Also, once you

         22  join the program, you follow your FIF and so on,

         23  then you'll be visited on a regular basis by DEP;

         24  would that be annually?

         25                 MS. HANNA: It's annually.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Annually. So,

          3  getting back to my earlier point, it seems that if

          4  I'm -- it seems that if I'm a business, I would like

          5  a lot of reasons kind of like not to, you know, sign

          6  up so-to-speak and sort of stay below the radar,

          7  because in order to file this form, I have to pay

          8  the fee, I am putting myself on DEP's radar, I'm

          9  going to have people coming around my premises, and

         10  it seems like there will be some incentive to kind

         11  of stay out of the program, which gets to my point,

         12  which you knew I was going to bolster, you know, to

         13  try to get these people who aren't in the system in

         14  the system.

         15                 Yes, if I was a company, I may not

         16  join this program unless somebody really made me do

         17  it. And, so, that's where I'm going here.

         18                 MS. HANNA: Well, our inspectors,

         19  they're aware that they need to keep an eye out for

         20  facilities in the areas that they do the

         21  inspections, if there's an obvious problem with a

         22  facility, that they may not be on their inspection

         23  schedule, they're going to go and look at it and see

         24  what's going on.

         25                 Also, sometimes competing facilities
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          2  will complain about their neighbor about something

          3  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          5                 MS. HANNA: -- This person right next

          6  to me doesn't have to do this, why am I having to do

          7  this?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good.

          9                 MS. HANNA: And they will go there and

         10  they will do an inspection even if it's not on their

         11  inspection schedule. And in some cases it's just an

         12  inspection that hasn't been done yet.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What if they

         14  don't let you in? Do you have the power to get in,

         15  even if they don't want you to go in? They say, hi,

         16  I'm from DEP, here's my little name badge, I want to

         17  do an inspection?

         18                 MS. HANNA: The Right-to-Know Program

         19  is allowed by law to issue violations for failure to

         20  allow access.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         22                 MS. HANNA: It's very rarely needed to

         23  enforce that, because they do get access most of the

         24  time.

         25                 In a few cases where the inspector
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          2  does go to the facility and they don't want to let

          3  you in.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          5                 MS. HANNA: You know, we inform them

          6  at the door, we get the name of the person and their

          7  title, who it is that's telling us we can't come in,

          8  we advise them of the requirements of the law, that

          9  they're going to be back later in the day when the

         10  manager or someone else should be there, because you

         11  don't expect to have a facility with chemicals to be

         12  totally unmanaged by anyone of any competence and

         13  they come back.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have any

         15  police that can accompany you?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Let me

         17  just interrupt, and I don't want to interrupt what

         18  we're saying here, but just to give you an example,

         19  there have been occasions when people were not doing

         20  the right thing, and to answer your question, we do

         21  not have the police downstate to do that, but we

         22  called on the police force, we got entry and we

         23  closed the businesses down. And that's for the first

         24  time when people really started taking us serious.

         25  You know, we don't want to be heavy-handed, we want
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          2  compliance, we want to force the compliance.

          3                 Getting back to your suggestions,

          4  trying to get the 100 percent of the population,

          5  also, the more I've sat here and thought about that,

          6  because I think we're both thinking along the same

          7  wave length, I've suggested before that we've

          8  attempted through a community outreach program to

          9  have folks come to us.

         10                 I'd like the members of this

         11  Committee to do so in their districts, and we

         12  certainly want to capture everybody.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right,

         14  great.

         15                 One more follow-up. We talked about,

         16  you know, companies coming into the program; does

         17  DEP believe that the penalties to file an FIF should

         18  be higher? Are you satisfied with that? Let me just

         19  finish the question.

         20                 Yes, okay, that's basically the

         21  question, are you satisfied with the --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I can

         23  honestly say we are to this point.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What is the

         25  penalty, by the way, for failure to file?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: $250

          3  initially. It goes up to -- sorry, if you can?

          4                 MS. HANNA: The second violation is

          5  1,750, and the third --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          7  Thirty-five hundred or something?

          8                 MS. HANNA: Thirty-seven hundred

          9  fifty.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         11  Doubled to 3,750.

         12                 So, I think they're sufficient, and

         13  we, obviously, would be back to you suggesting

         14  something different, directly in line, for instance,

         15  with what we did impose with respect to the Hanly

         16  bill, where we made the monetary expense

         17  significantly more, and then also we went with

         18  criminality as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, does

         20  anybody have any further questions?

         21                 Okay, if nobody has any more

         22  questions for DEP, I want to thank you very much for

         23  your testimony. I'd like to ask you to run that

         24  little idea of mine by the Commissioner about

         25  finding someone to find all the miscreants out there
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          2  and weren't signing into the system, that would be

          3  great. And we look forward to our next hearing and

          4  perhaps seeing Commissioner Ward and getting him

          5  before the Committee. I look forward to that.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Very

          7  good. I will take that message back. It's always a

          8  privilege to be before you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

         10  much. We appreciate it very much.

         11                 And our next witness is Reverend

         12  Jordan.

         13                 Reverend Jordan, is that right? Am I

         14  saying that right? Okay, Reverend. Please come

         15  forward.

         16                 Thanks very much.

         17                 Peter, if you could administer the

         18  oath to the witness?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do you swear

         20  or affirm that the testimony you're about to give

         21  before this Committee is the truth, the whole truth

         22  and nothing but the truth?

         23                 REVEREND JORDAN: I affirm.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Reverend Jordan, we ask you to

          4  identify yourself for the record and proceed with

          5  your testimony. But I notice you live in my

          6  district.

          7                 REVEREND JORDAN: Correct. With all

          8  due respect, Chairman, between you and the other two

          9  delegates from Queens that are here, if I get a

         10  dollar from each of you, I might make it back to the

         11  community today. Dire straights here today. Dire

         12  straights.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're happy to

         14  have you here, Reverend.

         15                 Please identify yourself for the

         16  record and proceed with your testimony.

         17                 REVEREND JORDAN: Okay, Reverend Al

         18  Jordan with Briarwood Community Association.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, if you

         20  would just speak louder, and bring the microphone

         21  over, it would help me here.

         22                 REVEREND JORDAN: Okay. Do you need me

         23  to repeat that or?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I got that, I

         25  just had to strain a little bit. Please continue.
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          2                 REVEREND JORDAN: Okay.

          3                 Just, once again, just good to see

          4  you, Chairman Gennaro.

          5                 Just a brief follow-up, two points of

          6  interest and an inquiry that I had. One in regards

          7  to the mold issue that we spoke about over at the

          8  meeting.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, that's

         10  right. You were at the community association meeting

         11  and you mentioned the mold issue.

         12                 REVEREND JORDAN: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Did you have

         14  your glasses on that night?

         15                 REVEREND JORDAN: I don't think so.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, you didn't

         17  have your glasses on. You faked me out.

         18                 REVEREND JORDAN: "Incognito" they

         19  call it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 REVEREND JORDAN: What happened was,

         22  the president did follow-up with a follow-up call to

         23  Metropolitan, the housing development there, but

         24  subsequently, they returned the call to my wife, who

         25  I apologize for not being here today, because we had
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          2  a family emergency, my mother-in-law --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          4                 REVEREND JORDAN:-- Had a mild stroke.

          5                 He did call them and they responded,

          6  but they responded in a manner that I thought was

          7  unprofessional.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know what

          9  I'd like to do, if I may? The issue that you speak

         10  of with regard to the mold problem would be sort of

         11  kind of a matter separate from that which is being

         12  considered by the Committee here today, and I'd be

         13  happy to sit with you after this, you know, along

         14  with staff to the Committee, to get you some kind of

         15  resolution to your problem.

         16                 Because we're really hearing

         17  testimony on the issue before the Committee today,

         18  which was this Intro. 47 and this oversight on the

         19  Right-to-Know program. Yours is more in the form of

         20  a complaint that you have regarding your local

         21  building, which myself and my personal staff and the

         22  staff of the Committee should help you resolve, but

         23  it's not really an item before the Committee today.

         24                 So, if you want to just sit right

         25  there after the hearing, I don't think we have any
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          2  more witnesses.

          3                 Did anybody else wish to testify?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Mr. Chairman?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: I have a

          7  question. I thought we came here to have a nearing

          8  on Intro. 47, which we did, and was to come to a

          9  vote? What is the procedure on this particular

         10  matter?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We came here to

         12  hear the bill, but we're not going to vote on the

         13  bill today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Are we going

         15  to move this for another date? Or is this being

         16  tabled?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're going to

         18  consider the testimony. We're not going to take any

         19  formal vote on Intro. 47 today.

         20                 I wanted to hear what the

         21  Administration had to say about it, and others.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: So what is

         23  the agenda of the chair, in regards to the future in

         24  regards to this Intro?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This Committee
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          2  is committed to this issue, as the Administration,

          3  so we had the first hearing on the bill, and then

          4  we're going to decide where we're going to go from

          5  here, but I don't want to decide right here right

          6  now.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Are we going

          8  to vote on this bill at the next Committee hearing?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Are we voting

         11  on it in this legislative session?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't know

         13  what we're going to do.

         14                 I think it would be my -- I think

         15  what I would like to do is make amendments to the

         16  legislation to make it better, after we do our due

         17  diligence, talk with people.

         18                 You never vote on a piece of

         19  legislation the first time out, because it was

         20  written and we have to make it better.

         21                 So, I don't know what the path for

         22  Intro. 47 is. It depends upon, I have to consult

         23  with the sponsors of the bill, of which I am not one

         24  of, along with other people who have interest, or

         25  other stake holders in this legislation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: What

          3  particular issue that is not satisfactory on this

          4  bill?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There were many

          6  issues regarding it, and we had a good discussion.

          7  I'm not going to redo the hearing now for your

          8  benefit.

          9                 So, I mean I would be happy to talk

         10  about it afterwards, but not here on the record. The

         11  record already has this information on it.

         12                 So, I would be happy to talk to you

         13  about it anytime.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Well, just

         15  for the public's interest.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, it's quite

         17  all right. It's quite all right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're doing the

         20  right thing. Thanks very much.

         21                 Yes, is there anyone else that wishes

         22  to be heard on the agenda for today?

         23                 Hearing none, the meeting is

         24  adjourned.

         25                 And we'll talk now on your mold
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          2  issue, all right? Thanks very much.

          3                 Reverend, just sit tight, I'll be

          4  right there.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.)
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